ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 26, 2009

3:11 p.m
MEMBERS PRESENT
Representati ve Bob Herron, Co-Chair
Representative Wes Kel |l er, Co-Chair
Representati ve John Coghil
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Representati ve
Representati ve

Sharon Ci ssna
Li ndsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 26

"An Act repealing the repeal of preventative and restorative
adult dental services reinbursenment under Medicaid; providing
for an effective date by repealing the effective date of sec. 3,
ch. 52, SLA 2006; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 2
"An Act relating to the issuance of a certificate of birth

resulting in a stillbirth.™
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 26
SHORT TI TLE: MEDI CAl D FOR ADULT DENTAL SERVI CES

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAVKER

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H HSS, FIN

02/ 26/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE February 26, 2009



BILL: HB 2

SHORT TI TLE: BI RTH CERTI FI CATE FOR STI LLBI RTH

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO

REFERRALS

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09
01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME -

01/ 20/ 09 (H) HSS, JUD

02/ 26/ 09 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 26.

REGAN MATTI NALY
Al aska Primary Care Associ ation (APCA)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

DON ROBERTS
Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

DELI SA CULPEPPER, COO

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority (AVHTA);
Co- Chai r

Al aska Dental Action Coalition

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

ELAI NE RATH
Al aska Brain Injury Network
Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

JON SHERWOOD, Medi cai d Special Projects
O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

BRAD WHI STLER, Heal t h Program Manager

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2-

26.

26.

26.

26.

26, Version E.

26, Version E.

February 26, 2009



MARI E DARLI N, Coor di nat or
for Retired People (AARP) Capital Cty Task

Aneri can Associ ation
Force

Juneau, Al aska
PGSI TI ON STATEMENT:

SANDRA W LSON, St aff

Testified in support of HB 26.

to Representative Gatto
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
Representative Gatto,

RHONDA CRAWFORD
Sol dot na, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

M CHELLE HOYT
Pal ner, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Presented HB 2 on behalf of the sponsor,
and responded to questi ons.

Testified in

Testified in

DR JOANNE CACCI ATORE, CEO

M1.S. S. Foundation
Peori a, Arizona
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testified in

DEBBI E JOSLI N, Presi dent

Eagl e Forum Al aska

Delta Junction, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

MAYME CHNEMUS

Testified in

Cooper Landi ng, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

PH LLI P M TCHELL, Chi
Vital Statistics

Testified in

ef

D vision of Public Health
and Soci al Services (DHSS)

Department of Health
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:11: 20 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE

support

support

support

support

support

of

of

of

of

of

HB 2.

HB 2.

HB 2.

HB 2.

HB 2.

Testified in support of HB 2, Version R

February 26, 2009



CO CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee nmeet i ng to or der at 3:11 p. m
Representatives Keller, Herron, Lynn, and Cissna were present at
the call to order. Representatives Coghill, Seaton, and Hol nes
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 26- MEDI CAl D FOR ADULT DENTAL SERVI CES

3:11: 37 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 26, "An Act repealing the repeal of
preventative and restorative adult dental services reinbursenent
under Medicaid; providing for an effective date by repealing the
effective date of sec. 3, ch. 52, SLA 2006; and providing for an
effective date."

3:12: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, in
response to Co-Chair Keller, said that there was a reason for
not originally amending the bill as the commttee had, but that
Version E was the will of the commttee.

3:12:21 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON noved to adopt the proposed conmttee substitute
(CS) for HB 26, Version 26-LS0142\E, M schel, 2/20/09, as the

wor ki ng docunent . There being no objection, Version E was
adopt ed.
3:12:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER expl ai ned that, until two years ago, adult
dental service had only been allowed through Medicaid if there
were both acute pain and infection. He noted that the 2007 bill
for preventive care had included a two year sunset clause, in
order to nonitor and review the fiscal inpact. He opined that
the program had gone quite well and that the growh had been
r easonabl e. He reported that the health comrunity supported
maki ng HB 26 pernmanent. He noted that Version E was adding
anot her five year limtation. He explained that this created a
chal l enge for the devel opnent of a provider base. He reported
that dentists nmade nore noney working with regular insurance
clients, rather than Medicaid, and that they were reluctant to
work with a programof limted duration.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 4- February 26, 2009



3:15:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Representative Hawker for his
preference to a limted or unlimted duration for HB 26.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER of fered his belief that there was adequate
basis for it to becone pernanent.

3:16: 44 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER reported that he had included a sunset clause in
HB 26 for the purpose of discussion. He added that HB 26 woul d
next be referred to the House Finance Commttee, which was
chai red by Representative Hawker.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that the House Finance Commttee
woul d take into consideration the wi shes of the House Health and
Soci al Services Standing Conmmttee.

3:17:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked Representative Hawker to clarify
that the reason for the original sunset clause was econom c, but
that the program had shown to be a good preventive dental health

policy.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER agreed, but said that there had been many
unknowns, including cost and wutilization. He opined that 2
years had been adequate tine for review

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked if the state could nonitor this
program and still reviewit wthout a sunset cl ause.

3:19:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER expl ained that HB 26 nerely extended the
exi sting program including the benefit paraneters.

3:20: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there was any significance to the
title change between HB 26 and Version E

COCHAIR KELLER said that the intent was only to include a
sunset cl ause.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 5- February 26, 2009



3:22:15 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON questioned whether the House Finance Conmmttee
should dictate health and social services policy to the House
Health and Social Services Standing Commttee. He offered his
belief that it was the fiduciary responsibility of the House
Finance Commttee to ensure that the state operated effectively.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, in response to Co-Chair Herron, explained
that the commttee process operated on good faith and trust. He
allowed that each commttee chairman had to decide "what is the
right thing to do." He said that the House Finance Conmittee
woul d not dictate human service policy, but that, as a sponsor
of HB 26, he would attenpt to influence human service policy
with the best argunents. He observed that his research
indicated that a permanent repeal of the sunset clause would
facilitate the inplenmentation of the program wth providers
nore willing to participate.

3:25:19 PM
CO CHAI R HERRON asked if Version E woul d change the fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER opined that the fiscal note would only
change at the sunset.

3:26:11 PM

CO CHAI R HERRON asked if Representative Hawker preferred Version
E or HB 26.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that he preferred the permanent
i npl enentati on of HB 26.

3:27:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked to clarify that Version E had been
adopt ed. He opined that once a Medicaid program had been
included, it would never be retracted. He expressed his support
for HB 26.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, in response to Representative Coghill,
poi nted out that out of control but well intended prograns had
been di sci pli ned.

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHILL, in response to Representative Hawker,
noted that the |egislature had been reluctant to change Medicaid

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 6- February 26, 2009



services, other than to increase them He supported the
preventative aspect of HB 26, and its positive econom c inpact.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA, in response to Representative Coghill,
noted that the nobst expensive nedevacs from the Al eutians were
dental rel ated. She reported that HB 26 had preventative
aspects that were not usually included with Medicai d.

3:33:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES opined that the sunset clause was not
necessary for HB 26, as the Medicaid expenses would be routinely
revi ewed.

3:35:17 PM
[ Co- Chair Keller opened public testinony.]
3:35:23 PM

REGAN  MATTI NGAY, Alaska Primary Care Association (APCA
explained that the Alaska Primary Care Association represented
26 health care organizations. He said that APCA supported HB
26, as oral health care was critical, and that dental services
reduced the future likelihood of nore expensive and acute dental
pr obl ens.

3:36:14 PM

DON ROBERTS said that dental care was necessary.

3:38:16 PM

DELI SA CULPEPPER, COO Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority
(AVMHTA); Co-Chair, Alaska Dental Action Coalition, said that
AVHTA supported a repeal of the sunset clause, and offered her
belief that it would be reviewed as a part of the annual
Medi cai d budget aut hori zati ons.

3:40: 30 PM

ELAINE RATH, Alaska Brain Injury Network, said that the
preventive dental services were utilized by seniors.

3:41: 45 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -7- February 26, 2009



JON  SHERWOCOD, Medi caid Speci al Proj ect s, Ofice of the
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS),
said that the adm nistration supported the 5 year sunset clause,
as there was not yet conclusive data to the cost effectiveness.

3:43: 27 PM

BRAD VH STLER, Health Program Manager, Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS), reported that good oral health was a
quality of life issue, and that it could affect enploynent and
food choices. He said that coverage of preventative and routine
restorative dental services had precluded nore expensive

repl acenent costs. He explained that a dental program for
adults, along with children, was necessary for a conprehensive
preventative dental program He said that DHSS supported

passage of some version of HB 26.
3:47:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for a conparison to the anount of
dental facilities expansion and participation both wth and
wi thout the 5 year sunset clause in HB 26.

MR. VWH STLER explained that the 2 year sunset clause did not
show a commtnment, but that re-authorization of the program
even with a 5 year sunset clause, reflected a much greater
assurance. He reported that private dentists were concerned
with participation in Medicaid because of reinbursenent issues
and increases in federal audits.

3:49: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the result should the program
exceed its allocated funding.

MR. VWH STLER said that it would result in energency regulations

to lower the annual recipient limt for the succeeding fiscal
year.
3:51:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if maintaining a fiscal note and a
sunset clause determned this dental program to be a separate
Medi cai d program

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 8- February 26, 2009



MR. SHERWOOD, in response to Representative Seaton, explained
that the budgeting for this as part of the Medicaid
appropriation was separate fromthe sunset cl ause.

3:52:52 PM

MR. SHERWOOD, in response to Co-Chair Keller, said that seniors
were eligible for Medicaid at 65, though some individuals wth
disabilities or low inconme were eligible earlier. He said that
Medi care did not include dental service.

3:54: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the dental therapists in rural
Al aska were included in this program

MR. WHI STLER replied that dental therapists were included in the
tribal dental care program

3:55: 30 PM

MARI E DARLIN, Coordinator, Anerican Association for Retired
People (AARP) Capital City Task Force, said that AARP had
already witten a letter in support and that the continuation of
t he program was inportant.

3:56:43 PM

CO CHAIR KELLER asked if there was any nore testinony, and
seeing none, public testinmony was closed. He noted that Version
E would be kept in front of the commttee, and a determ nation
to nmove the bill would be nade at a | ater date.

COCHAIR HERRON said that he appreciated the sponsor's
di scussion, and that Version E had been presented to encourage
t he debate.

HB 2- Bl RTH CERTI FI CATE FOR STI LLBI RTH

3:57:40 PM
CO- CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business woul d

be HOUSE BILL NO 2, "An Act relating to the issuance of a
certificate of birth resulting in a stillbirth."

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 9- February 26, 2009



SANDRA WLSON, Staff to Representative Gatto, Alaska State
Legi slature, explained that HB 2 allowed the issuance of a birth
certificate to the parents of a stillborn child.

3:58: 26 PM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 2, Version 26-LSO0003\R, M schel, 1/29/009,
as the working docunent.

3:58: 39 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER obj ected for the purpose of explanation.

3:58:47 PM

M5. WLSON explained that the difference between the original HB
2 and Version R was a renoval for the duplication of records,
which was requested by the Division of Public Health, Vital
Statistics.

3:59:51 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER renoved hi s objection.

4:00: 03 PM

M5. WLSON said that the purpose of HB 2 was to bring closure to
the parents of stillborn children. She said that currently, a
fetal death certificate was distributed. She reported that a
birth certificate would validate that a child was born and woul d
allow closure for the parents. She said that the birth

certificate was optional.

4:00: 51 PM

CO CHAI R KELLER opened the di scussion to public testinony.

4:01: 20 PM

RHONDA CRAWCORD shared her experience with the still birth of
her child. She said that having a birth certificate would nean

alot to her famly.

4:03:49 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -10- February 26, 2009



M5. CRAWORD, in response to Representative Lynn, said that it
had been five years.

4:04:10 PM

M CHELLE HOYT rel ated her experience with the still birth of her
child. She said that HB 2 would bring closure for the famlies,
and woul d acknow edge that the child was born.

4:05:24 PM

DR. JOANNE CACCI ATORE, CEO MI.S.S. Foundation, explained that
she represented 76 state chapters of the MSS Foundation, which
hel ped famlies whose children died. She infornmed that the
effect of still birth was devastating on famlies. She stated
her support for HB 2 and noted that 26 other states had simlar
| egi sl ati on.

4:07:40 PM

DEBBIE JOSLIN, President, Eagle Forum Al aska, shared her
experi ences and encouraged support for HB 2.

4:09:55 PM

MAYME OHNEMUS said that she was the grandnother of a stillborn
chil d. She shared the history of her daughter in laws
pregnancy, and the devastation from the death of the baby. She
recounted the pain felt with a death certificate and that a
still birth certificate would have been nuch nore respectful and
conforting.

4:13:40 PM
PH LLIP M TCHELL, Chief, Vital Statistics, D vision of Public

Health, Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS),
expl ai ned that sub-section (f), HB 2, should be renoved to

mnimze any fiscal inpact to the state. He expl ai ned that
Vital Statistics already had the information, and it only needed
the authority to issue the certificate. He noted that the

certificates needed to cone to Juneau for the gold state seal to
be affi xed.

4:15: 14 PM
CO-CHAIR KELLER said that HB 2 would be held until the next

nmeeti ng.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -11- February 26, 2009



4:15:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES shared that she had famly friends who
still nourned.

4:16: 18 PM
CO CHAI R HERRON extended his synpathy to the testifiers.

4:17:11 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further Dbusiness before the conmttee, the
Department of Health and Social Services neeting was adjourned
at 4:17 p.m

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -12- February 26, 2009



